ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 26, 2007
3:36 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senator Bert Stednan, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda Green

Senator Gary Stevens

Senator Lesil MGQiire

Senator Bill W el echowski

Senat or Thomas WAgoner

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 104
"An Act relating to the Alaska Gasline Inducenent Act;
establishing the Alaska @Gasline |nducenent Act mat chi ng
contribution fund; providing for an Al aska Gasline Inducenent
Act coordinator; naking conform ng anendnments; and providing for
an effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI OUS COVMM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 104

SHORT TITLE: NATURAL GAS Pl PELI NE PROJECT
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

03/ 05/ 07 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 05/ 07 (S) RES, JUD, FIN

03/ 14/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 14/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 14/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 16/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 16/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 16/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 19/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 19/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 19/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 21/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
03/ 21/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- March 26, 2007



03/ 21/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 21/ 07 (S) RES AT 5:30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
03/ 21/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 21/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 22/ 07 (S) RES AT 4:15 PM FAHRENKAMP 203

03/ 22/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 22/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 23/ 07 (S) RES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 23/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 23/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 24/ 07 (S) RES AT 1: 00 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
03/ 24/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 24/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 24/ 07 (S) RES AT 3: 00 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
03/ 24/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 24/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 26/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Tony Pal ner, Vice President

Al aska Busi ness Devel opnent

TransCanada Cor poration

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conmented on SB 104

Comm ssi oner Tom Ilrw n
Departnent of Natural Resources
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avai |l abl e for questions

Comm ssi oner Patrick Galvin
Depart ment of Revenue
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avai l abl e for questions

Bill Wal ker, General Counsel and Project Manager
Al aska Gasline Port Authority

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Paul Fuhs, Governnent Affairs
Al aska Gasline Port Authority
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Radosl av Shi pkoff, Director
Greengate Capital, LLC
Fi nanci al Advi sor, Al aska Gasline Port Authority

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 26, 2007



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avai |l abl e for questions
ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR CHARLIE HUGGEA NS called the Senate Resources Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 3:36:24 PM Al nenbers were
present at the call to order.

SB 104- NATURAL GAS PI PELI NE PRQJECT

CHAI R HUGE NS announced SB 104 to be up for consideration

TONY PALMER, Vice President, Al aska Business Devel opnent,
TransCanada Corporation, began with slide presentation show ng
the conpany’s assets all over North Anerica; it owns 36,500
m | es of pipeline. He gave exanpl es of pipelines TransCanada has
built that are as big as the proposed project, and said that the
conpany noves 15 billion cubic feet (bcf) per day of gas.

3:40: 33 PM

CHAI R HUGA NS asked what the conpany woul d have done differently
in retrospect rather than create six different parallel |ines.

MR. PALMER explained that it turned out that Al berta produces
200 bcf yearly, not 50 bcf. As gas is developed, it is
increnented; that is the best solution over tinme. No one knew
where the gas was or what markets it would go to.

He said that quite often a pipeline is constructed depending on
anticipations made in the first two years; it’'s inpossible to
build a “perfect” pipeline. It’s less expensive to build a
pipeline with sone basis for increnent and ultimately build a
second parallel pipeline if necessary.

3:43: 01 PM

CHAIR HUGE NS asked if he could tell his constituents that
Al aska woul d not have six parallel pipelines.

MR. PALMER replied yes. If the pipeline is constructed, he would
hope that it would be expanded quickly wth conpression and
| oopi ng. The expansion would nean putting a second pipe in the
sanme ri ght-of - way.

3:44:13 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 26, 2007



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said it | ooked like they were tal ki ng about
simlarly-sized projects.

MR. PALMER replied that the pipeline would run 1,750 mles in-
state and 1,000 mles to Alberta; they are of simlar scale. The
Al aska pipeline would be an increnental increase of 5 percent
over the existing network.

3:45:44 PM

He explained that TransCanada is the |argest gas transm ssion
conpany in North Anerica. It serves different parts of the US
and Canadi an markets, and owns significant storage as well.

CHAI R HUGGE NS asked for the dianeter of the pre-build pipe.
MR. PALMER replied that it is in 36- and 42-inch sections.
3:47: 01 PM

He explained that the conmpany’s cash flows are equivalent to or
| arger than the equity required for the Canadian portion of the
project. The debt side of the project would be funded on a non-
recourse basis, with equity provided by the sponsors. A single
year of cash flow would cover the Canadian portion; a second
year would cover the Alaskan portion. It is financeable wth
sufficient conmtnents.

SENATOR STEDMAN asked for a definition of TransCanada's cash
flow

MR. PALMER said that it’'s the net inconme plus the depreciation
avai |l abl e from normal busi ness.

He expl ained the conpany’s experience in natural gas pipelines,
including regulatory, social, environmental, and First Nations
experience, and described the structure of the pipeline system
wi thin Al berta.

3:50:17 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked M. Palner to talk about rolled-in
rates in Canada and if they di scouraged bids in open seasons.

MR. PALMER replied that Canada has used such rates for a |ong

time and they have contributed to expansion; they have not
danpened enthusiasm for bidding. As regards an initial pipeline

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- March 26, 2007



of 4.5 bcf per day, one needs to nmke assunptions about the
timng for expansions.

3:52: 30 PM

He continued to explain in further detail the amounts of gas
TransCanada ships and how the tolls, conpression, and | ooping
factors are cal cul at ed.

3:54:45 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked why a bigger pipe wouldn‘t be built
initially if there were expectations for expansion.

MR. PALMER replied that it is cheaper to expand a project when
t he gas becones available if it isn't going to happen within the
first two to five years.

3:56:42 PM

He then explained the Canadian portion of the Trans-Al aska
Pipeline project where the pipeline is in the ground and has
been expanded five times since 1981; the last increnent was
added in 1998. TransCanada built it under the Canadi an Northern
Pipeline Act and it nmet environnmental standards.

He said that TransCanada's interest in the Al askan natural gas
project totals over $2 billion and 30 years invested in bringing
Al askan gas to market. TransCanada holds valid and exclusive
certificates issued under the Northern Pipeline Act (NPA) for
the Canadi an section of the project. These certificates do not
have a sunset or expiry date, and a treaty was executed for the
proj ect .

He nentioned that questions about taxes and Canadi an access are
answered in the treaty. TransCanada has | egal access to the |and
all the way through the Yukon in terns of easenents, and has
paid the fees for them through the vyears. It holds Kkey
environnental permts in Alaska and federal rights-of-way.
TransCanada has offered to vend those assets to another partner
if they finish a project subject to one condition: that they
connect the line at the border.

SENATOR W ELECHONSKI asked if M. Palnmer was saying that there
are no First Nations problens.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 26, 2007



MR. PALMER said they have |egal access to the Canadian |and and
have held it for 25 years, and that access has been recognized
by the governnent of Canada and the First Nations.

4:03: 08 PM

MR. PALMER descri bed the Mackenzie project in Canada, which was
subject to benefits negotiation and access agreenents with First
Nations. He said that TransCanada has comenced discussions
regardi ng benefits, but they are not required for the project.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he was concerned with Canadian tariffs
and the process that will need to be gone through in Canada.

MR. PALMER replied that the treaty between the US and Canada
sets out the terns for the project. They will charge the Al aska
gas pipeline simlar property tax rates as their owners, so it
won't be discrimnated against. The Canadian governnment has
commtted to equal rates for Al askan and donestic gas shi pping.

4:06:21 PM

He said that with regards to the National Environnmental Policy
Act, Canada has an environnental review process and the project
was approved nearly 30 years ago; the pre-build also nmet the
environnmental requirenments. There wll be issues, but the
“go/ no-go” decision won't have to be revisited.

He explained how the National Energy Board held conpetitive
hearings and selected Foothills as the project sponsor;
TransCanada was actually initially rejected. In the |ast decade,
TransCanada has acquired an interest in Foothills to position
itself for the natural gas project. The opportunity has been
avai lable to all conpetitors in the marketpl ace.

4:09: 00 PM

He explained that transporting gas out of one country through
anot her and back into the sanme one is not comon. Canada wl
not be following the negative exanple of Russia and Tajikistan

in doing so; the arrangenents between Canada and the U S. are
fair, and Canada has honored that treaty for 25 years.

4:10: 13 PM

He said that once National Energy Board approval is received,
the project could proceed normally. There likely wouldn't be

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 26, 2007



subsequent legislation for the project; both countries have
interest in expediting the project. The Northern Pipeline Act is
not out-dated; the pre-build has been, and the remai nder of the
pipeline in Canada wll be, constructed under the act. The act
also established a single-wndow regulator, which wll be
di sbanded once the construction is conplete; that contrasts with
the nultiple agencies constructing the MacKenzi e project.

4:12:49 PM

CHAIR HUGEA NS asked M. Palnmer to describe the hurdles the
MacKenzi e project had to clear that Al aska nay have to address
for its pipeline.

MR. PALMER replied that TransCanada is a mnor sponsor of the
MacKenzie project. It went through the traditional NEB process
seeki ng environnental approval; the process should be conpleted
later in 2007 and the project is seeking gubernatorial approva
by 2008. As regards the Al aska project, TransCanada holds the
certificate already; it has a single-w ndow regulatory agency to
provi de oversight for the project, which is a significantly
si nmpl er process.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI replied that it seens there is a |ot of gas
in the MacKenzie project and he thought that Canadians woul d
have nore interest in getting its gas to market. He asked what
kind of assurances there are that Canada woul d support this line
or that one.

MR. PALMER replied that he can't speak for the Canadian
governnment, which clearly seeks to nove its gas to narket;
however it's not an either/or proposal for Canada. Both sources
of gas are needed in the North Anerican market, and the
government of Canada signed the treaty wth the US. 25 years
ago. Canada has honored it since then.

4:16: 48 PM

He explained that Foothills was granted exclusive rights, and
the project was in the national interest of the US and of
Canada. The comm tnments were not given with the expectation that
the plan was only one of many ways to do the project. Financing
woul d have been inpossible if a second party held the rights.

4:18: 05 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- March 26, 2007



He showed a map of the Alberta system and explained that the
Nova Inventory Transfer (NIT) is the largest hub in North
Arerica. NIT has a capacity of 11 bcf per day; it has peaked at
60 bcf per day. The physical flows are 11 bcf; the financial
flows are 50 to 60 bcf a day. It is the nost liquid hub in North
Anmerica. TransCanada’s projection of spare capacity on the
systens |eaving Al berta neans there will be sufficient room in
ten years’ tine to nove the entirety of Alaskan gas with no
increnental expansions. This neans there are two benefits for
Al askans: the gas could be sold in Al berta, or could be traded
for diversification

4:22:11 PM

CHAI R HUGGE NS asked if taking gas in kind is comon in Canada.

MR. PALMER answered that Al berta takes it in value principally.
4:22:46 PM

MR. PALMER showed a slide to explain how in 1990 TransCanada
constructed 7,000 mles of pipeline under budget. He showed
slides citing statistics on operating costs, the conplexity of
pi pel i nes, conpr essi on mai nt enance, and t he conmpany’ s
reliability in conparison to other parties.

4:27.:20 PM

He then showed anot her slide regarding safety performance.
4:27:41 PM

CHAI R HUGE NS asked a question about a figure on the slide.

MR. PALMER answered that the figure was a question mark, and
said that the final slide showed statistics for inspections of
lines; TransCanada pioneered hydrostatic testing and it wll
becone a standard.

4:30: 27 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN asked M. Palner to talk about risk to pipelines
in different stages.

MR. PALMER replied that it's normal that a pipeline conpany

woul d take cost risks. | f a project is successfully
certificated, the risk is shifted to the custoner. The pipeline

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 26, 2007



conpany takes just a portion of the capital risk; if there was
zero risk, they would fund with 100 percent debt.

4:34:52 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN asked if nost of the risk faced before a
successful open season could be diversified.

MR. PALMER replied that during the open season the conpany has
the bulk of the risk. Once the project is in service, the risk
is smaller because nobst of it has been spent on the project
al ready. He added that pipeline conpanies always seek |ong-term
contracts with credit-worthy parties. Sone parties can pay the
bills, and sonme can't; financial circunstances often change over
time.

He then explained a FERC rule changing credit-party access which
nmade parties no longer able to pay the bills; everyone had to
recalibrate. Sone parties now only provide a one-year letter of
credit. In the event that gas wouldn’'t be flowing at the end of
t hat one-year period, the risk would be borne by other parties.

4:38:55 PM

SENATOR STEDVAN asked for an estimate of what it would cost to
get fromthe current date to open season.

MR. PALMER answered that analysis has not been conpleted. In
terms of ball-park nunmbers, if gas were to be commtted in an
open season and necessary engineering would be conpleted, the
cost would be tens of mllions, but not hundreds of mllions.

4:40: 26 PM
CHAIR HUGGA NS asked himto restate his comments on open season
4:40: 36 PM

MR. PALMER replied in explaining that if TransCanada is picked
under AQ A it would quickly develop costs so it could put
forward the appropriate charges from the pipeline to the
custonmer to allow themto nmake a decision as to whether they are
ready to commt they gas to the pipelines. This would be done in
a period of nonths, not weeks or years.

4:42: 00 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -9- March 26, 2007



CHAIR HUGEA NS nentioned the $500 million in incentives in AG A,
and asked if TransCanada wouldn’'t be able to do the project
w t hout them

MR. PALMER replied no. The conpany would prefer to risk-share
with Al aska through the open season process. To date, parties

have been unwilling to conmt gas, so there is significant
uncertainty going into an open season. TransCanada s proposal
would share the risk before open season; in the event the
project is successful the $500 million would not be included in
the tolls.
4:43. 54 PM

CHAIR HUGGA NS remarked that M. Palnmer’s prediction for costs
leading up to an open season was less than the incentives
of fered, and asked if the conpany woul d not need that nuch noney
to becone invol ved.

MR. PALMER replied that that was correct. He continued on to
explain TransCanada’'s efforts to work on the pipeline project,
and how it owns certain assets. He said that the conpany had
responded to requests from the previous admnistration to comne
up with alternatives under the Stranded Gas Act franework.

4:47:25 PM

SENATOR W ELECHONSKI asked if TransCanada is not selected it
Will turn over its rights to the w nner.

MR. PALMER replied that TransCanada is prepared to vend its
assets in Alaska, but not through Canada; it wants to construct
the pipeline in Canada itself.

4:49:18 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what it would take for another
conpany to get simlar rights in Canada.

MR. PALMER replied that that would be assunming TransCanada
didn't try to defend its rights, because they are exclusive. A
conpany would have to seek to obtain a right-of-way from the
Nati onal Energy Board and the Canadian Environnental Agency,
obtain access from First Nations, decide if it would connect
with the existing systemor build another |line, and go through a
MacKenzi e-type revi ew process.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 10- March 26, 2007



4:51:10 PM

He stated that to date the state and the producers have not
reached an acceptable agreenment on the pipeline project;
TransCanada supports noving the project forward i mediately. He
reaffirmed TransCanada’s position that all stakehol ders are best
served by having a large-scale pipeline project proceed
expeditiously; a conpromse is required fromall sides. He then
said he would be discussing concerns about AGA  which
establ i shes specific application requirenents.

4:54: 25 PM

He said that TransCanada accepts the necessity of Al aska's need
to inplenent a new process. However it is concerned as regards
the proposed obligation for the licensee to proceed to obtain
FERC certification regardless of open-season outcone; if the
requi r enent isn't anended i ndependent conpanies nmay hot
partici pate.

He said that AG A proposes cost-sharing on a 50/50 basis through
the initial open season, and up to 80/20 after certification;
TransCanada is supportive of the 50/50 sharing but is concerned
that a private devel oper would be reluctant to conmt noney if
the initial open season hasn't attracted enough conmtnents to
nmake the project viable. The tine and noney costs of pursuing
the FERC certificate are substantial. TransCanada recommends the
removal of the requirenment of |icensee continuing towards FERC
certification in the event of an open season that doesn’'t
attract sufficient gas conmtnents. At present, TransCanada
will continue to work towards an arrangenent between the three
producers, Al aska, and Canada.

4:57:22 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN asked if TransCanada is not interested in going
beyond a fail ed open season w thout firm shipping comitnents.

MR. PALMER replied that TransCanada is interested in pursuing
commitments, but it is not appropriate to require pursuit of a
FERC certificate; there has been a certificate for the project
for 30 years. TransCanada wants to focus on getting custoners as
opposed to doing the engineering, regulatory, and |egal work
needed to capture the certificate, costing naybe hundreds of
mllions of dollars with no assurance at the end that the
conpany woul d get custoners.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- March 26, 2007



SENATOR STEADMAN said that getting to open season would cost
tens of mllions, and going beyond a failed open season would
cost hundreds of mllions wth no insurance of custoners.

MR. PALMER said that was correct; TransCanada would prefer to
continue to pursue custonmers and not spend FERC certification
dol | ars.

SENATOR STEADMVAN said that AG A proposes a significant split in
cost sharing which could put a conpany in an unconfortable
posi tion.

MR. PALMER agreed; appropriate expenditures beyond a failed open
season would be for capturing gas, as opposed to pursuing
certification.

5:01: 09 PM

CHAI R HUGA NS opi ned that a successful open season is a critica
event .

MR. PALMER said as the project proceeds, there are a nunber of
important tests such as how AG A ends up and what the actual

request for application and the costs will be. During the open
season process, TransCanada would put forth the best proposa
possible to try and attract customers. Until that tine, barring
a pre-arranged collaborative agreenent, open season will be the

nmost significant factor.
5:04: 03 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS nenti oned that Enbridge had said that if producers
didn't participate there would be no pipeline.

MR. PALMER answered that he didn't hear that testinony; he said
that if there are no custoners and no credit there will be no
pi pel i ne.

CHAIR HUGE@ NS asked a nenber of the admnistration to cone
forward to address questions.

5:05: 23 PM
SENATOR WAGONER referenced prior discussion regarding the length

of a pipeline and the placenent of gas treatnent plants, and
asked M. Pal mer for conment.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- March 26, 2007



MR. PALMER said that TransCanada is prepared to construct the
Al aska section alone or in part. Sonetines producers own
treatnent plants, and TransCanada is open to that. It nmay be the
nost | ogical solution for the builder of the pipeline to own the
gas treatnent facilities. However, TransCanada would be wlling
to own the treatnment facilities.

5:07: 20 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS noted that Conm ssioners Galvin and Irwin had
joined the hearing, and asked themto comment on the possibility
of a failed open season and TransCanada’'s reluctance to continue
t owar ds FERC certification.

5:07:46 PM

COM SSI ONER GALVIN, with the Departnment of Revenue, replied
that different positions have been staked out over the years,
and the state has an interest in protecting those positions.
AG A is trying to open the process up to as many participants as

possible; the bill was not crafted with any particular party in
m nd.
5:10: 56 PM

COM SSIONER IRWN, with the Departnment of Natural Resources,
coomented that AG A is focusing on the pipeline issue; the
process is high-centered. The state doesn’'t want to be held at
the nercy of something undefined. It’s a credit to TransCanada
that the conpany is participating in the process, and it nust
have a lot of faith in the Canadi an side.

5:12: 58 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he was concerned about a gap in AGA
regardi ng comruni cati on between various parti es.

COM SSIONER | RWN said that question has been asked for years,
and that comunication is a tw-way street. The state is
listening, but has to be told what people need.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said he was worried that parties are not
communi cati ng enough, and asked if AQA sufficiently addresses
t he issue.

5:15: 05 PM
COM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that the state has experience wth
the Stranded Gas Act nodel. There is not a shortage of

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 13- March 26, 2007



opportunity to conmuni cate, but an inperative is needed to reach
an agreenent on noving the project forward. AGA is not a
hi ndrance to conmmunication; it sets up the opportunity and
i nperative to keep a high | evel of comunication.

5:17:34 PM

CHAIR HUGGA NS said he didn't recognize those qualities in AGA,
and he is concerned about an wunsuccessful open season and
resulting certificate requirenents. There should be neetings
with key players to go over the inportance of successful open
seasons.

5:18: 21 PM

COW SSIONER |RWN said the state needs to hear other players
frame the issue and discuss what they need or don’'t need. Unti
then, the state is in a precarious situation.

5:19: 35 PM

CHAIR HUGEA NS said that if the open season is unsuccessful
Al aska will be | everaged.

5:19:58 PM

SENATOR GREEN agreed with the chair, and said that a response to
M. Palnmer's comments was needed.

5:21:01 PM

COM SSIONER ITRANN replied he was paying TransCanada a
conplinment by pointing out how nuch noney and time the conpany
had i nvest ed.

SENATOR GREEN said that didn't answer the comments.

COM SSIONER IRWN replied that the state needs framng fromthe
other side; it is nore than willing to spend the tine necessary
to solve the communication problens.

SENATOR GREEN replied that the response was unhel pful .

5.:22:20 PM

SENATOR MCGUIRE said that it would be giving away the state’s
negotiating position to respond directly to the question and

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- March 26, 2007



imply that the state would be wlling to finance without
requi red FERC certificate application.

COW SSI ONER | RW N concurr ed.

SENATOR STEDVMAN said he didn't agree with that explanation.
D fferent conpanies have cone forward and said they want to see
state conm tnent besides cutting a check

5:25:19 PM
MR. PALMER said that TransCanada recognizes the necessity for
the state to change the dynamcs, and parties do need to

conprom se

The commttee took an at-ease from5:28: 06 PMto 5:37:07 PM

5:37:11 PM

MR. PALMER said that TransCanada accepts the necessity of
changi ng the dynami cs of the project. The key issue is obtaining
custonmers, and AQJA is an initiative to try and do that.
TransCanada does believe that there are other initiatives beyond
the open season that can capture sufficient custoners, and the
conpany would clearly try to do so. The state proposal has
changed the dynamic and the matter is in the hands of the
| egislature. Al parties are |ooking to advance the project, and
TransCanada has offered a conpromse. It is for the state and
the three producers to decide if they will do the sane.

5:40: 37 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN said several years ago there was a |ower gas
price and a diversion and substantial price increases that |ed
to a whole new set of financial considerations; one could now
make an argunent that the gas is not stranded at current prices.
He asked if M. Palmer has seen a nove to drive the project
forward regardl ess of political issues.

5:41:41 PM

MR. PALMER replied that it is true that price forecasts are
significantly higher than five years ago. The cost increase in
the oil and gas business been partially caused by the high price
of gas and oil; this has happened before and can happen again.
It is a cyclical business. The price of gas is better today and

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 15- March 26, 2007



it makes the project nore econonmically feasible, but to date
st akehol ders haven’t been able to advance it.

5:43: 53 PM

SENATOR STEDMAN said there has been discussion of w ndow of
opportunity and of first gas comng in 10 years. He asked for
the conpany view on LNG and the inpact relative to getting the
proj ect on-Iline.

5:44:25 PM

MR. PALMER said he had sonme analysis of projections of natura
gas demand, and as prices rise, demand falls. Custoners reduce
the demand for gas and there is also an expected increase in
supplies. The traditional basins have not been very responsive
to the higher price; the expectation is that higher prices would
drive increases in the expectation of supply, but that has not
happened. The opportunity for the Alaska project renains,
because the traditional basins in North Anerica have not
responded. In the event that LNG continues to cone ashore, the
potential remains that this project will conpete against a brown
field, this is nore difficult to predict than conpetition
against a green field. LNG and natural gas are both needed in
the marketplace, but it serves no project for conpetitors to
succeed.

5:47:10 PM

He said that a project needs to be in place to capture rolled-in
toll investnment opportunities. Mst LNG projects would have the
opportunity to reduce those costs over tinme. The Al aska project
would be well-served to advance when it is a green field
conpeting against a green field.

5:48: 00 PM

COMWM SSIONER  GALVIN said that, regarding Senator G een's
guestion about FERC certification, the state is trying to set up
a sense of conpetition. It is not trying to shape the demand
towards any particular applicant, so the legislature should wait
until hearing from all testifiers before expecting an answer.
The AG A deadline for an application is a sort of inpetus, neant
to have the conpanies take the opportunities to participate
individually or jointly. The state wants to get the project to
an open season and ask to the producers if they wll accept a
certain tariff rate and sell at a particular price. The state is

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 16- March 26, 2007



trying to create the best project to get to that point. If a
producer says no, one of the reasons is because the uncertainty
makes them unconfortable. The next phase of the project is FERC
certification, which will nean different questions, paraneters,
and risk conponents than initial open season. That is the point
at which whatever is wong or mssing needs to be acknow edged.
That’ s TransCanada’s argunent; they don’t see value in the FERC
certificate requirenent, and the state does.

5:52:52 PM

He said in the end everyone is trying to get to a successful
open season. If commtnents aren’'t procured, the state nust try
sonething else, but it isn't ready to agree to that now

CHAIR HUGGA NS said of the two pipeline conpanies he has talked
to, both have said the risk brought by an unsuccessful open
season is scary; his gut feeling is that he doesn’t want to dea
wi th an unsuccessful open season. It is less risky to deal wth
the issue now. The legislature owes M. Palner an answer, and he
shares his concerns.

5:55: 00 PM
He added that he has heard multiple positive coments on the
candor of M. Palner's presentation; he |ooks forward to a

possi bl e partnership with TransCanada.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from5:56:05 PMto 6:00:41 PM

Bl LL WALKER, GCeneral Counsel and Project Manager, Al aska Gasline
Port Authority (AGPA), said he wouldn’t go through the details
of the project at the tinme but would instead address concerns
wth AGA He related the history of the AGPA and said that it
has an IRS ruling stating it is tax-exenpt; the Yukon Pacific
Corporation (YPC) has a simlar story. It is a huge advantage
for the APGA to have a warehouse full of data on the project. In
addition to acquiring YPCs rights and data, AGPA has worked
with an array of other entities and has the ability to put
t oget her a vi abl e project.

6: 04: 22 PM
He explained that the APGA has seen the econom c nodel for and
benefits of the project; no conpanies have wal ked away from the

economcs of the project. AGPA has the sanme goal as the
| egislature, to maxim ze the benefits of the resources for the

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- March 26, 2007



people. He then described AGPA's proposal for the project,
i ncluding capacity and | ocation. Supply to south-central Al aska
would be an inportant factor and gas would be nade avail able
along the route to Fairbanks as well. AGPA views itself as a
facilitator for the project; many of the pieces have been
gathered together already and it is pleased to hear about the
producers being willing to sell gas to a third party project.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked M. Walker to elaborate on his concerns
about open season.

MR. WALKER said he is hoping for a successful open season, and
based on the testinony, he believes there will be one. The
initial project is small enough that it's within the limts of
what’s allowed to be taken off of Prudhoe Bay. There’'s no
addi tional discovery required.

6: 08: 32 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS asked what M. Wl ker’s thought process would be
in case of a failed open season.

MR. WALKER replied that certification would depend on how the
project was structured. AGPA wouldn't |eave the project just
because of a failed open season.

CHAIR HUGEA NS commented that M. Palnmer prefers to spend noney
t owar ds guar ant eed success.

6: 09: 58 PM

MR. WALKER said he doesn’t disagree with M. Palner's testinony.
AGPA has participated in the Pt. Thonpson issue and is pleased
with that approach. Attracting investors after a failed open
season would be difficult; having gas is inportant for the
proj ect .

He then read a prepared statenent regarding AGPA' s approval of
the AQ A approach and how rolled-in rates will work well for the
project. The initial shippers have the advantage of getting
their product to market earlier. AGPA is also supportive of gas
off-take points to allow for use by Alaskans. They're not a
prohi bitive expense.

6: 13: 43 PM

He said that said AGPA did not request the $500 mllion in
i nducenents, but it believes it is appropriate; it is not an

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 18- March 26, 2007



outright grant, and the provision will help advance the project.
The previous proposed contract offered inducenents only to
producers.

| ndustry representatives have approached the state to say they
want fiscal certainty before they will proceed with the project.
To protect the interest of Alaska, the l|legislature should always
retain the authority to nake decisions on the tax rates. Wile
the APGA would be willing to submt an application under Ad A,
the bill can be inproved. He then nade a |ist of suggestions for
i nprovenent, including adding provisions for a project in
Canada; it should include a detailed description of how gas w ||
get fromAl berta to the M dwest.

6:16:40 PM

MR. WALKER said that applicants require an initial off-take from
the Prudhoe Bay unit greater than what’'s presently allowed by
the Alaska Ol and Gas Conservation Commission (AOGCC). An
i ncrease should be considered to allow for |arger projects.

SENATOR WAGONER said that AOGCC is revisiting the issue to see
if the nodel is correct; it may be high. During the prior
adm ni stration the AOGCC was relying on Point Thonpson nunbers.

6:18: 30 PM

MR. WALKER said the normal way to re-exam ne the nunbers would
be through an application; Point Thonpson has a trenendous
anmount of liquids and gas, so it is an inportant question.

CHAIR HUGGA NS said that 2 to 2.5 bcf was APGA s target.

PAUL FUHS, Governnent Affairs, Al aska Gasline Port Authority,
said that the goal is an econony of scale. He referenced a
Canadi an pipeline to show the risks of different output vol unes.

6: 20: 15 PM

MR. WALKER said that A A should include a tineline for the
di scovery of additional gas; the applicant should be required to
do so. An additional criterion is val ue-added processing, and it

would be helpful to know if the liquids would be staying in
Al aska. Tineliness of construction should be a high priority as
wel | ; previous net present values show that an earlier project

brings nore value to the state.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -19- March 26, 2007



He added that there has been nuch testinony about risk,
especially regarding a |ine through Canada. There 1is a
significant risk of cost overruns and volatility in the market.

6:22: 16 PM

He said that said the nobst inportant decision is choosing the
right-sized project. Some think a large project would be better,
but the size holds inherent risks; it requires participation
from all producers, who can conpron se one another. AGPA woul d
be wlling to build through Delta Junction as long as there was
no serious delay for the Canadi an portion.

6: 24: 35 PM

He explained that a shorter pipe has a distinct advantage in
terms of cost overrun risks. LNG tanker wll have smaller
degrees of uncertainty. A partner shipping conpany with AGPA has
ei ght tankers that will be avail able. A Canadi an hi ghway project
has the risk of unresolved First Nation clains and right-of-way
agreenents; an LNG project nust identify and recognize the
chall enges. An all-Alaska project would be nore able to nove
ahead in a tinmely fashion. One main concern of APGA is that
Al aska m ght m ss the market.

6: 28: 03 PM

He said that if Alaska msses its w ndow of opportunity the gas
coul d become stranded, which it is not now It’s not the biggest
project out there, but it's viable and it’|ll bring trenendous
benefit to the state.

6: 28: 58 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said his concern is the fear that there
will not be a successful open season; he asked what the
likelihood for a successful season for this project would be
and what kind of revenue the project would bring to the state.

MR. WALKER said there is not enough information available to
conpare to other projects.

RADOSLAV SHI PKOFF, Financial Advisor to the AGPA, said it is
difficult to conpare AGPA's economics wth other projects. The
| ower volune is not a disadvantage; it will allow a project to
proceed and expand. As long as the econonmi cs are sustainable it
is a positive thing. AGPA deals with the first phase of the

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 20- March 26, 2007



project and uses the existing resource base, which may require
| arger reserves to go forward.

6: 33: 04 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said this project is |less expensive, and
asked if that would result in lower tariffs and thus nore noney
to the state.

MR. SHI PKOFF replied that there are costs associated with noving
gas to Valdez, nmarine transportation, and tolls. There's no
additional strain put on the capital market, and regarding the
cost of the project AGPA can conpete with any other proposed
proj ect .

He said that he was not sure the project would nake nore noney
for the state, but the project can fit wthin the existing
reserve base and it can proceed sooner rather than |ater.

6: 35: 21 PM

CHAI R HUGE NS asked for nunbers regarding revenue to the state
at certain capacities.

MR. SHI PKOFF replied that he didn’t have the nunbers avail able
but could provide themlater. AGPA is in the process of updating
its analysis in preparation for an application.

CHAI R HUGA NS asked about the conpany’s relationship with Harold
Heinz [CEO of the Alaska Natural Gas Developnent Authority
(ANGDA) | .

MR. WALKER replied that AGPA operates independently. ANGDA has a
right of way to Palnmer, and AGPA has one to Valdez. It nakes
sense to work together in some capacities; there is confidential
information the conpanies share with one another, and the boards
have talked about having joint neetings. However they are
separate entities with distinct m ssions.

6:37:57 PM

CHAIR HUGE NS asked for comment on possible expansion of a
portion of pipeline going to Val dez.

MR. WALKER replied that AGPA has not proposed anything I|ike

that; their project has always been a 48-inch line. Adding
conpression i s cheaper than addi ng pipe.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -21- March 26, 2007



MR. SHI PKOFF said the pipe is expandable to 6 bcf wthout any
need for looping; the 48-inch pipeline is the optiml starting
point, and the pre-build needs to account for expansion.

6: 39: 52 PM

CHAIR HUGE NS asked who would build the pipeline, and if there
woul d be an affiliation with a pipeline conpany.

MR. SHI PKOFF said that AGPA may or nmay not be owner and that
answer has not been determned. AGPA will wuse its role as a
catalyst to bring in reputable participants. AGPA doesn’'t have
the technical ability to build the pipeline, and would have to
get a contractor; it couldn't get financing wthout a good
contractor.

CHAIR HUGGE NS asked what conpanies were in partnership wth
AGPA.

MR. WALKER said the conmpany has a nunber of partners including a
law firm in New York. The relationship with Senpra Energy is
ongoi ng; t hat conpany was concer ned about t he past
adm nistration and thus changed its relationship with AGPA. Sone
entities have | ooked at the project and seen a very |ow risk.

SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI  asked if APGA needs fiscal certainty
including locking in tax rates.

6:43: 57 PM

MR. WALKER said AGPA is confortable with the statutes as they
are.

MR. SHI PKOFF said there is a distinction between needing and
wanting fiscal certainty. Conpanies don't want to pay higher
taxes. Many places around the world don't provide fiscal
certainty; countries wth political uncertainty offer sone
degree of fiscal certainty. The UK, for exanple, increased taxes
from the North Sea but conpanies still do business there. The
AGPA discussion has been tied to taxes at the upstream where
i npact variation is significantly |less. AGPA could participate
wi t hout certainty where another entity would want it.

6:47:44 PM

SENATOR STEVENS asked why AGPA has an advant age.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -22- March 26, 2007



MR WALKER replied that the Yukon Pacific Corporation has
al ready spent noney to bring the project together, and has a

right of way and permts that will need to be updated; the
conpany is starting from a nore advanced position. AGPA
possesses significant data as well; it is at |east a three-year
advant age.

CHAIR HUGGE NS referenced a docunent regarding a provision that
extends the pipeline tineline, depending on financing, and asked
for M. Wal ker’s comments.

6: 50: 42 PM

MR. WALKER said the five-year provision could be shortened to
four years.

CHAIR HUGA NS referenced a provision for project insurance, and
asked if that was inportant to AGPA

MR. WALKER said that provision would not be a deal-naker or
deal - breaker. The |anguage is helpful but AGPA wll proceed
regar dl ess.

6:52: 53 PM

CHAIR HUGE NS comrented that the all-Alaska gas pipeline is
popul ar, but critics are against Fai rbanks and Val dez
controlling the pipeline.

MR. WALKER said that the North Slope, Fairbanks, and Valdez
would be the three entities controlling the line; the structure
is such that 60 percent of gas would go to the state and 40
percent would go to each nmunicipality on a per capita basis
AGPA woul d not regul ate who gets the gas.

He added that AGPA is an infrastructure that allows the novenent
of commodities; its rate of return is |less than one percent. The
return cones in the formof using the resources in the state.

6: 55: 22 PM

CHAIR HUGG NS said that people have conplained that Wasilla
isn't being fairly represented on the issue.

MR. WALKER said he appreciates the opportunity to clarify the
i ssue.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 23- March 26, 2007



CHAIR HUGGA NS said the nore conpetitors in the process the
better.

MR. FUHS said that a smaller project will be nore successful
because everyone is not required to participate and the
situation won't be conprom sed. Holding out for the biggest
project may nean it woul d never happen.

CHAIR HUGA NS said the concept of risk to the state is critical
There being no further business to conme before the commttee, he
adj ourned the neeting at 6:59: 37 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 24- March 26, 2007



